Frederick William Dame

CROOKED RATIONALIZATIONS ABOUT POLITICS

An Open Letter to the Journalist and Blogger Andrew Sullivan

Dr. Andrew Sullivan!

As a British journalist and blogger living in the United States of America, you should
be ashamed of yourself. There are many epitomés of crooked rationalizations about

politics. You have formulated two of the worst. They are:

Firstly, you, Dr. Andrew Sullivan, made the preposterous claim that Trig Palin, who
has Down Syndrome, was most probably a child that was born to Bristol Palin, the
daughter of the former Republican Party Vice-Presidential candidate Sarah Palin.
You claim that Trig Palin is the result of a faked pregnancy and that Sarah Palin
faked the pregnancy for the purposes of protecting Bristol Palin, for the purposes of
political gain, and for a number of other reasons, none of which you can prove. You
wrote, "So she is either a self-serving drama queen who didn't realize her story
would imply she put her child ... at great risk and then winged it to make her story
more plausible; or she is a fantastic hoaxer and liar at a world class meshugana
level that, at some point, will make Weinergate look like a damp squib."' That is
quite a mess of contorted rationality concerning an innocent child. Indeed, your
position is an insult to a baby boy who cannot defend himself and the mother who
gave birth to him. With this concocted crap you, Dr. Andrew Sullivan, have reached

about the lowest rung on the ladder of human behavior.

If anyone is meshugana (crazy) then it is you Dr. Andrew Sullivan. Trig Trutherism
is nothing more than a continuation of the left's conspiracy against patriotic
Americans. Of course, being British, you would not understand American patriotism

' hitp:/andrewsullivan.thedailybeast.com/2011/06/the-day-trig-was-born.html




anyway, to say nothing about Sarah Palin's love for her son. At least Trig was born
and not aborted like 1.2 million other American babies.

Yiddish is a beautiful language! Regarding Yiddish and being born: this author
poses the following question:

Is your presence in the world the result of Ahftseloches (ahf tseh luh chass

= inevitable bad luck)?
This is not an insinuation. It is only a question.

You say that, "All | have done is ask for evidence that Sarah Palin is the biological
mother, evidence that must be easily available and definitive."> Well, Sarah Palin

gave you her answer.®

The same perimeters apply to the question above concerning your presence on this
planet. All one asks is for evidence of your biological raison'd étre, "evidence that
must be easily available and definitive."

Trig Palin's birth is really none of your business. You do not accept Sarah Palin's
telling the truth. That is the problem with you libtards, obots, and progs. You
believe that only you have a monopoly on the truth. Dr. Andrew Sullivan! It is the
other way around. Libtards, obots, and progs would not recognize the truth if the
Sovereign of the Universe personally communicated it to them.

As an aside, it will surely interest you to know that Trig Palin has a real, legal birth
certificate, which Barack Hussein Obama does not have. This is the crux of the truth
behind the liar Barack Hussein Obama.

Secondly, this fact leads directly to the second epitomé of your crooked
rationalizations about politics, which has to do with believing just about everything
that comes from the Barack Hussein Obama regime in Washington, D. C. Is this the
story behind the cover story of the January 23, 2012 issue of Newsweek titled Why
are Obama' critics so dumb?, or was the true intent of your article to boost

2 http://andrewsullivan.thedailybeast.com/2011/04/a-paper-on-the-press-and-trig.html
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Newsweek's falling sales? You can pass this present author's solution to the falling
sales along to Newsweek. All the persons responsible at Newsweek have to do is to
report the truth, not make up the news!

Your article is filled with illogical faults and misrepresentations of the truth, also
known as lies. Two important ones are listed herewith with this author's comments

in red to symbolize the bloody truth!*

> "Under Obama’s budgets both past and projected, he will have added $1.4 trillion
[to the national debt] in two terms.” THE TRUTH: Obama has added ca. 5 trillion
dollars to the national debt in less than four years. That is one-third of the
cumulative national debt since George Washington was President.

» Obama's Supreme Court nominees Sonia Sotomayor and Elena Kagan are only
"moderately liberal". That statement is totally delusional. THE TRUTH: Both are
ultra left. Sonia Sotomayor had practically all of her former judicial decisions
before she became a Supreme Court Justice reversed by a higher court.> Elena
Kagan was never a judge and she most likely committed perjury at her

nomination hearings.6
Let us now examine Barack Hussein Obama's successes in:
Foreign Policy
» Obama has destroyed the peace process with Israel and the Arabs.

» He refused to assist Iranians struggling to oust their repressive regime, while
doing his best to give the people of Egypt and Libya new governments that
will be even worse than the ones they replaced.

» In Afghanistan, there have been more U.S. troop deaths in three years than in
the previous eight, and the administration is now ready to negotiate a deal
with the Taliban.

* For these and the items listed below, consult the January 2012 Report in The Obama Timeline at
http://www.colony14.net/id41.html|

® http://homeschoolcommunity.files.wordpress.com/2009/06/pros-and-cons-on-judge-sotomayor-
being-appointed-to-the-supreme-court.doc

® http://blog.heritage.org/2012/01/13/obamacare-litigation-more-%E2%80%9Cgolden%E2%80%9D-
reasons-why-justice-kagan-may-need-to-recuse-herself/




>

Obama’s only positive foreign policy accomplishment has been the killing of
Osama bin Laden—for which he eagerly takes credit but which was the work

of the military and intelligence agencies, not Obama personally.

Domestic Affairs

>
>

Obama has taken a terrible economy and made it worse.

He has added more than $4 trillion to the national debt in only three years,

while wasting money on jobs programs that created virtually no jobs.

There are two million fewer Americans working than when Obama took office,
and thousands more job-killing regulations on the books.

Scandals

>
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the most noteworthy among many are Operation Fast and Furious, Solyndra,
and LightSquared.

the dropping of the New Black Panther Party prosecution.

the firing of Inspector General Gerald Walpin.

the mishandling of the Gulf oil spill and ignoring related court orders.
violating the rights of bondholders in the Chrysler takeover
ObamacCare vote bribery,

refusing to defend certain laws such as the Defense of Marriage Act.
suing states for daring to take action against illegal immigrants.

ordering the Department of Justice to ignore voting rights violations when

victims are white.

» unconstitutional non-recess appointments.

issuing countless ethics waivers so that lobbyists can work in the White
House.

remaining in office although the Constitution for the United States of America

in Article 1l, Section 1, Clause 5. prohibits him from ever occupying that office.



Committed Felonies’

18 U.S.C. 371 Conspiracy to Commit Offense or to Defraud United States.

"If two or more persons conspire either to commit any offense against the
United States, or to defraud the United States, or any agency thereof in any
manner or for any purpose, and one or more of such persons do any act to
effect the object of the conspiracy, each shall be fined under this title or
imprisoned not more than five years, or both. If, however, the offense, the
commission of which is the object of the conspiracy, is a misdemeanor only,
the punishment for such conspiracy shall not exceed the maximum
punishment provided for such misdemeanor."

An analysis by the United States Justice Foundation (USFJ) states that, "As in
all conspiracies, there must be two or more persons working in concert to
achieve an illegal act, so the president would need a co-conspirator for this
statute to apply. The state of Hawaii is being very secretive about the
whereabouts or even existence of Mr. Obama's supposed birth certificate. If
the officials in charge of keeping these records know of its non-existence,
then they would be co-conspirators with the objective of defrauding the United
States as to the citizenship status of Barack Obama. There, however, must be
an 'in concert' element met, meaning that these officials are withholding the
proof at the direction of Mr. Obama. Is it possible that these officials love
Barack Obama so much that they are withholding these documents out of the
goodness of their own hearts? Yes, possibly, however unlikely. It is
reasonable to infer that the Hawaiian officials are working 'in concert' with Mr.
Obama to suppress this information, since each would face both civil and

criminal suits, not to mention the loss of furthering their own political goals."

18 U.S.C. 911 False Personation of Citizen of the United States.

"Whoever falsely and willfully represents himself to be a citizen of the United
States shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than three years,
or both."

7 http://www.wnd.com/index.php?fa=PAGE.view&pageld=126137




- The USJF analysis says: "If Mr. Obama is not a natural born citizen, then he
must have other proof of United States citizenship. If he has neither of these,
then as acting head of state he is holding himself out to be a citizen of the
United States, and is therefore liable under this section as well."

18 U.S.C. § 912 False Personation of Officer or Employee of the United States.

"Whoever falsely assumes or pretends to be an officer or employee acting
under the authority of the United States or any department, agency or officer
thereof, and acts as such, or in such pretended character demands or obtains
any money, paper, document, or thing of value, shall be fined under this title
or imprisoned not more than three years, or both."

- The USFJ analysis is, "Basically this statute calls for 1) fraudulent intent, and
2) an overt act to accomplish the inducement of one giving over a thing of
value. If it were found that Barack Obama was not a natural born citizen, as
required by the U.S. Constitution Art. Il § 1, Clause 5, he will have assumed
the office of president fraudulently to obtain money (among other things) by
way of his annual salary. The Supreme Court has upheld convictions for False
Personations in U.S. v. Lepowitch, (63 S.Ct. 914), and Lamar v. U.S., (36
S.Ct. 535)."

18 U.S.C. 1542 False Statement in Application and Use of Passport.

"Whoever willfully and knowingly makes any false statement in an application
for passport with intent to induce or secure the issuance of a passport under
the authority of the United States, either for his own use or the use of another,
contrary to the laws regulating the issuance of passports or the rules
prescribed pursuant to such laws; or

- Whoever willfully and knowingly uses or attempts to use, or furnishes to
another for use any passport the issue of which was secured in any way by
reason of any false statement—Shall be fined under this title, imprisoned not
more than 25 years (if the offense was committed to facilitate an act of
international terrorism (as defined in section 2331 of this title)), 20 years (if the
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offense was committed to facilitate a drug trafficking crime (as defined in
section 929 (a) of this title)), 10 years (in the case of the first or second such
offense, if the offense was not committed to facilitate such an act of
international terrorism or a drug trafficking crime), or 15 years (in the case of
any other offense), or both."

- The USJF analysis says: "To obtain a U.S. passport one must show a valid
birth certificate or some other form of identification showing U.S. citizenship.
Barack Obama would have to have furnished some sort of birth certificate or
other document showing he is a citizen. Of course, even if he was not a
natural born citizen, he could show naturalization or some other citizenship
papers. However, if these documents are spurious, then he would be guilty
pursuant to the first paragraph, and to then use his illegally obtained passport,

he would also be guilty under the second paragraph as well."

18 U.S.C. 1621 Perjury.

"Whoever—(1) having taken an oath before a competent tribunal, officer, or
person, in any case in which a law of the United States authorizes an oath to
be administered, that he will testify, declare, depose, or certify truly, or that
any written testimony, declaration, deposition, or certificate by him subscribed,
is true, willfully and contrary to such oath states or subscribes any material
matter which he does not believe to be true; or

- (2) in any declaration, certificate, verification, or statement under penalty of
perjury as permitted under section 1746 of title 28, United States Code,
willfully subscribes as true any material matter which he does not believe to
be true; is guilty of perjury and shall, except as otherwise expressly provided
by law, be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than five years, or
both. This section is applicable whether the statement or subscription is made
within or without the United States."

- The USJF analysis says: "Mr. Obama has taken the oath of office of POTUS,
in front of Chief Justice of the U.S. Supreme Court, John Roberts, in which he
promises to 'defend the Constitution'. As an illegal alien, or even a non-natural

born citizen, he would be acting as an ineligible president. Furthermore, as an
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attorney, and a former professor of constitutional law, Barack Obama would
have full knowledge of the requirements for an eligible candidate for the office
of POTUS. This shows that he has willfully stated that he will and is acting
contrary to his presidential oath."

18 U.S.C. 2388(a) Activities Affecting Armed Forces During War.

"(a) Whoever, when the United States is at war, willfully makes or conveys
false reports or false statements with intent to interfere with the operation or
success of the military or naval forces of the United States or to promote the

success of its enemies; or

- Whoever, when the United States is at war, willfully causes or attempts to
cause insubordination, disloyalty, mutiny, or refusal of duty, in the military or
naval forces of the United States, or willfully obstructs the recruiting or
enlistment service of the United States, to the injury of the service or the
United States, or attempts to do so—Shall be fined under this title or

imprisoned not more than twenty years, or both."

- The USJF analysis says: "Intent is fully at issue here; however, President
Obama made it clear during his campaign that his full intent when entering
office would be to scale down the conflict with Afghanistan and Iraq,
eventually leading to a full withdrawal. His statements of being a natural born
citizen to obtain the office of commander in chief were in effort to interfere with
the attempts by the former commander in chief's attempt at engaging the

enemy in these two countries, for the purpose of national security.

- In the case of Schulze v. U.S. (259 F. 189) Petitioner was convicted under this
statute, and the question of intent was at issue. The court stated, 'lt is true that
in charging the offense it is unnecessary to allege the intent; the offense being
one whose very definition necessarily includes intent. In such a case it is
necessary only to aver in apt terms the acts done. The intent will be inferred.
The charge is not unlike that of treason, the indictment for which needs go no
further than to follow the language of the statute which defines the offense.
(United States v. Greathouse, 2 Abb.U.S. 364, Fed. Cas. No. 15,254)...



- This means that intent is inferred from the act itself. Mr. Obama has already
announced that the efforts in Afghanistan will be scaled back, and a full
withdrawal is planned ... . Furthermore, the announcement of this strategy
works to the aid of our enemy, who now knows to sit in caves and wait out the
U.S. for only a year or so. This certainly works to interrupt our operations
and promote the success of our enemy."

Corruption

- Barack Hussein Obama is continuously one of the ten most wanted corrupt
politicians in Washington, D. C.2

Dr. Andrew Sullivan! You conclude your article with a most asinine statement:

“If I sound biased, that's because | am. Biased toward the actual
record, not the spin; biased toward a president who has conducted
himself with grace and calm under incredible pressure, who has
had to manage crises not seen since the Second World War and
the Depression, and who as yet has not had a single significant
scandal to his name. ‘To see what is in front of one’s nose needs a
constant struggle,” George Orwell once wrote. What | see in front
of my nose is a president whose character, record, and promise
remain as grotesquely under-appreciated now as they were
absurdly hyped in 2008. And | feel confident that sooner rather
than later, the American people will come to see his first term from
the same calm, sane perspective. And decide to finish what they
started.”

Dr. Andrew Sullivan! You do not understand American patriots. The very great
majority of Americans are not libtards, or obots, or progs like the Andrew Sullivan
sort. Americans do not like liars and that is why they do not like the charlatan
Barack Hussein Obama. Neither do they appreciate pseudo-intellectual concocted
stories like yours in Newsweek. The real question regarding your cover article is not

® http://www.judicialwatch.org/corrupt-politicians-lists/washingtons-ten-most-wanted-corrupt-
politicians-for-2011/



why Obama's critics are so dumb, but Why is Dr. Andrew Sullivan so dumb as to
believe what he writes?

Dr. Andrew Sullivan, it is you who is unable to see what is in front of your
nose. Perhaps your nose is too close to Barack Hussein Obama's rectal voice.
Since you are into Barack Hussein Obama so deep and love sexually inverted
associations, this author's suggestion is that you apply for the position of Barack
Hussein Obama's body servant. You would be number sex, oops, six of his body
servant entourage: Larry Sinclair, Donald Young, Larry Bland, Kal Penn, Reggie
Love ... and Dr. Andrew Sullivan, "one who converses more with the buttock of the

night than with the forehead of the morning."®

Frederick William Dame
Patriotic, Steadfast, and True

January 28, 2012.

° William Shakespeare, Coriolanus, 2. 11. 50-52.
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